TAX RETURN FILING INSTRUCTIONS
NEW YORK FORM CHAR500, ANNUAL FILING REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, 2012

Prepared for

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION
900 S. CROUSE AVENUE
SYRACUSE , NY 13244-2130

Prepared by
BONADIO & CO., LLP
115 SOLAR STREET
SYRACUSE, NY 13204
Mail tax NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW
return to CHARITIES BUREAU - REGISTRATION SECTION

120 BROADWAY
NEW YORK, NY 10271

Return must be
mailed on
or before

PLEASE MAIL: AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

Special
Instructions

NEW YORK FORM CHAR500 MUST BE SIGNED AND DATED BY BOTH OF THE
AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUALS. ALSO BE SURE THAT THE ATTACHED COPY
OF FEDERAL FORM 990 HAS BEEN PROPERLY SIGNED AND DATED.

ENCLOSE A CHECK FOR $275 MADE PAYABLE TO NYS DEPARTMENT OF LAW.
INCLUDE THE ORGANIZATION'S STATE REGISTRATION NUMBER(S) ON THE

REMITTANCE.
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Form CHARSOO

Annual Filing for Charitable Organizations
New York State Department of Law (Office of the Attorney General}
Charities Bureau - Registration Section
120 Broadway
New York, NY 10271

http:/Awww.charitiesnys.com

a. For the fizcal year beginning (mm/ddiyyyy) 07 /01 /2011 and ending (mm/ddiwyy) 06/30/2012
b. Check if applicable for NYS: | c. Name of organization d. Fed. employer ID no. {EIN}
[ Adaress change NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114
|:| Name change e. NY State registration no.
[ 1 initial filing 00-78-17

Final filing Number and street (or P_0. box if mail not delivered to street address) | Room/suite |f. Telephone number

Amended filing 900 8. CROUSE AVENUE 315 428 8670
Iy registration pending City or town, state or country and ZIP + 4 g. Email

SYRACUSE , NY 13244-2130

We certify under penatties of perjury that we reviewed this report, including all attachments, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, they are

true, correct and complete in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to this report.

CHARLES BENJAMIN PRESIDENT 05/15/13
Printed Name Tile Date

JOHN ASHBY CFO 05/15/13
Frinted Name Tile Date

a. Article 7-A annual report exemption {Article 7-A registrants and dual registrants)

if total contributions from NY State {including residents, foundations, corporations, government agencies, etc.} did not exceed
$25,000 and the organization did rot engage a professional fund raiser {PFR) or fund raising counsel (FRC) to solicit
contributions during this fiscal year,

Check mp

NOTE: An organization may claim this exemption if no PFR or FRC was used and either: 1) it received an alfocation from a
federated fund, United Way or incorporated community appeat and contributions from other sources did not exceed
$25,000 or 2) it received all or substantially all of its contributions from one government agency to which it submitted an
annual report simifar to that required by Article 7-A.

b. EPTL annual report exemption (EPTL registrants and dual registrants)
Check [ ] if gross receipts did not exceed $25,000 and assets {market valus) did not exceed $25,000 at any time during this fiscal year.

If you did not check the Article 7-A annual report exemption above, complete the following for this fiscal year:
Did the organization use a professienal fund raiser, fund raising counsel or commercial co-venturer for fund raising activity in NY State? D Yes™ No

*1f"Yes", complete Schedule 4a.
. Did the organization receive government contributions {grants)? . .. @ Yes™ D No

* If "Yes", complete Schedule 4b.

a.

Indicate the filing fee(s) you are submitting along with this form:

a. Aticle 7AflINGTee . $ 25.
B. EPTLAIING P8 ..o $ 250
$ 275

c. Total fee

6. Attachments - For organizations that are not claiming annual report exemptions under both laws, see last page for required attachments »o

168451
1z-22-11 1019 CHARS00 - 2011



NEAR EAST FOUNDATION

If you checked the box in question 4.b. on page 1, complete the following schedule for each government contribution {grant). Use additional copies
of this page if necessary to list each government contribution {grant) separately.

USATD $ 809,893.

FOREIGN GOVERNMENT GRANTS $ 78,734.
$
§
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
)
$
$
$
3
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
1%

s 888,627.
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NEAR EAST FOUNDATION

5. Fee Instructions

The filing fee depends on the organization's Registration Type. For details on Registration Type and filing fees, see the Instructions for

Form CHARS00.

Organization’s Registration Type

Fee Instructions

®  Article 7-A
* EPTL

® Dual

a) Article 7-A filing fee

Calculate the Article 7-A filing fee using the table in part a below. The EPTL filing fee is $0.

Calculate the EPTL filing fee using the table in part b below. The Article 7-A filing fee is $0.

Calculate both the Article 7-A and EPTL filing fees using the tables in parts a and b below, Add the Article 7-A
and EPTL filing fees together to calculate the total fee. Submit a single check or money aorder for the total fee.

Total Support & Revenue | Article 7-A Fee * Any organization that contracted with or used the services of a professional fund raiser
more than $250,000 $25 {PFR) or fund raising counsel (FRC) during the reporting period must pay an Article 7-A
up to $250,000 * $10 filing fee of $25, regardiess of total support and revenue.

)

b) EPTL filing fee

Net Worth at End of Year

EPTL Fee

Less than $50,000

$25

$60,000 or more, but less than $250,000

$50

$250,000 or more, but less than $1,000,000

$100

$1,000,000 or more, but less than $10,000,000

$250

$10,000,000 or more, but less than $50,000,000

$750

$50,000,000 or more

$1500

6. Attachments - Document Attachment Check-List

Check the boxes for the documents you are atfaching.

For All Filers

Filing Fee

Copies of Interal Revenue Service Forms

IRS Form 990

Scheduie B)
1 18S Form 990-T

IE All required schedules (including

E Single check or money order payable to "NYS Department of Law"

[ IRS Form 990-E2 (1 RS Form 990-PF

|:| All required schedules (including |:] Al required schedules (including
Schedule B} Schedule B)

(1 rs Form 990-T L1 1rs Form 990-T

Independent Accountant's Report

Additional Article 7-A Document Attachment Requirement

!E Audit Report (fotal support & revenue more than $250,000)
:’ Review Report (total support & revenue $100,007 to $250,000)
|:| No Accountant's Report Required (fotal support & revenue not more than $100,000)

1019
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TAX RETURN FILING INSTRUCTIONS

FORM 990

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

Prepared for
NEAR EAST FQOUNDATION
900 S. CROUSE AVENUE
SYRACUSE , NY 13244-2130
Prepared by

BONADIO & CO., LLP
115 SOLAR STREET
SYRACUSE, NY 13204

Amount due NOT APPLICABLE
or refund

Make check NOT APPLICABLE
payable to

Mail tax return

and check (if
applicable) to NOT APPLICABLE

Return must be
mailed on
or before

NOT APPLICABLE

Special
Instructions THIS RETURN HAS QUALIFIED FOR ELECTRONIC FILING. AFTER YOU
HAVE REVIEWED THE RETURN FOR COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY,
PLEASE SIGN FORM 8879-EO AND CONTACT OUR OFFICE TO CONFIRM
THAT THIS RETURN CAN BE FILED ELECTRONICALLY. DO NOT MAIL A
PAPER COPY OF THE RETURN TO THE IRS.

REPORT OF FOREIGN BANK AND FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS:

SEPARATELY MAIL FORM 90-22.1, REPORT OF FOREIGN BANK AND
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS. THE FORM MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

MATL TO: DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
P.0O. BOX 32621
DETROIT, MI 48232-0621

THIS FORM SHOULD BE SIGNED AND DATED BY THE APPROPRIATE
CORPORATE OFFICER.

100541
05-01-11



IRS e-file Signature Authorization OMB No. 1545-1578

fom 3879-EO _ for an Exempt Organization
For calendar year 2011, or fiscal year beginning JUL 1 , 2011, and ending JUN 3 0 ,20 1 2 20 1 1

Department of the Treasury P Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records.

Internal Revenus Service P See instructions.

Name of exempt organization

Employer identilication number

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114
Name and title of officer

JOHN ASHBY

VICE PRESIDENT & CFO

Part] Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Doltars Only)

Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you check the box
on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then leave ling 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b,
whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more

than 1 line in Part I
1a Form 990 check here P> b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VI, column {4), ling 12) _ . |

3266748

2a Form 990-EZ checkhere P> I:] b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, ine Q) i, 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here P |:| b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, ine 22} 3b
4a Form 980-PFcheckhere P> I:] b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part V1, line 5) ... 4b
5a Form 8868 check here P~ I:J b Balance Due (Form 8868, Part |, line 3corPart li, line8c) ... &b

Part 1l Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer

Under penatties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above organization and that | have examined a copy of the organization’s 2011
electronic retum and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. |
further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the organization's electronic return. | consent to allow my
intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the organization’s return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS
(a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transimission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c)
the date of any refund. If applicable, | autherize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct
debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization's federal taxes owed on this
retumn, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at
1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. | also authorize the financlal institutions involved in the
processing of the electronic payment of taxes to recelive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the
payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the organization's electronic retum and, if applicable, the

organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal.

Officer’s PIN: check one box only

IE | authorize BONADIO & CO., LLP to enter my PIN 24114

ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but
do not enter all zeros

as my signature on the organization’s tax year 2011 electronically filed return. If 1 have indicated within this return that a copy of the return
is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | also authorize the aforementioned ERO to
enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

I:l As an officer of the organization, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization’s tax year 2011 electronically filed return. If | have
indicated within this return that a copy of the retum is being filed with a state agencyi(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State

program, [ will enfer my'PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.
Officer's signature i/l _ J Date po 05/13/13
/A4

T Certification and Authentication

EROC’s EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification
number (EFIN} followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. [ 16033257004 |

do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2011 electronically filed retum for the organization indicated above. |
confirm that | am submitting this retyrn in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modemized e-File (MeF} Information for Authorized IRS

e-fife Providers for Business ReturAs.

pate p 05/13/13

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form To the IRS Unless Requested To Do Se

ERO's signature >

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8879-EQ (2011)

123051
12-¢1-11



| ©OWB No, 1545-0047

2011

990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Form

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947{a){1} of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung
benefit trust or private foundation)

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service P The organization may have to use a copy of this retum to satisfy state reporting requirements.
A For the 2011 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 2011 andending JUN 30, 2012
B Checkif C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:

cengs. | NEAR EAST FOUNDATION

Eha;?'lze Doing Business As 13-1624114

ot Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number

Termin- 900 S. CROUSE AVENUE 315-428-8670

A e City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4 G _Gross recelpts § 3,266,748.
[ Jpeetea | SYRACUSE , NY 13244-2130 Hia) Is this a group return

pending F Name and address of principal officerrd OHN ASHBY for affiiates? [ _Ives No

H(b) Ave all affiliates included? _lves [ INo

I Taxexempt status: LX] 501(c)(3) |1 501(c)( ) (insertno.) |1 4947(a)(1yor L] 527 If "No," attach a list. (ses instructions)
J Website: p WWW . NEAREAST.ORG H{c) Group exemption number P
K_Form of organization; [ X | Corporation [ __JTrust [ [ Association [ ] Other > [ L vear of formation: 19 3 O] M State of legal domicite: N'Y

Summary

o | 1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: THE NEAR EAST FOUNDATION HELPS
g BUILD MORE SUSTAINABLE, PROSPEROUS, AND INCLUSIVE COMMUNITIES IN THE
g 2 Checkthis box P LJ if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
32| 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, Ine 1a) . 3 13
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, fine 1b) __________________________________________ 4 12
8| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2011 (Part V, line2a) 5 11
g 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate I NECeSSaIYY 6 30
E 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIll, column (C), ine 12 7a 0.
b Net unrelgied business taxable income from Form 990-T, e 34 ...t 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
g 8 Contrbutions and grants {(Part Vill, ling 1} 3,427,209. 3,174,595,
£ | © Program service revenue (Part Vil line 2g) e 228,898, 73,665,
é 10 Investment income (Part VIIl, column (A}, lines 3, 4, and Td) _______________________________________ 7,255, 4,483,
11 Other revenue (Part VI, column (4), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c,and 116) 13,506. 14,005,
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 {must equal Part VIIl, column (A}, line 12) 3,676,868, 3,266,748,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (&), lines 1-3} ... 935,353, 55,428.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), fined) 0. 0.
8 16 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A}, lines 5-10) 1,146,405. 1,124,565,
§ 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column {A), linet11e)
g b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25} P
W47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A}, lines 11a-11d, 11f24e) .
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 3 57 8 36 8 3 65 9 50 7 .
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract ine 18 from N8 12 .....o..oovvvoeioreoooeeoeoen 98,500. —-392,759.
S§ Beginning of Gurrent Year End of Year
85[20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 4,278,911, 4,110,200.
5| 21 Total liabiities (Part X, line 26) 727,389, 993,880.
5&_’ 22 _Net assets or fund balances. Subtract fing 21 from line 20 3,551,522. 3,116,320,

2t Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belied, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of freparef (ogher than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
’ N A [05/15/13
Sign sSignature of officer™ 777 FV Date

Here JOHN ASHBY , VICE PRESIDENT & CFO
} Type or print name and fitle

z P
Print/Type preparer's name Preglafer's signature Late Ohe 1] P
/ y/

Preparer |Firm'sname p BONADIO & CO., LLP Firm's EIN p 16-1131146
Use Only |Firm'saddress), 115 SOLAR STREET

SYRACUSE, NY 13204 Phaneno. 315-214-7575
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) ... LX:‘ Yes || No
132007 01-23-12  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2011)

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION



NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114  pPage2
| Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part Il i e iaas Ifﬂ

Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

THE NEAR EAST FQUNDATION HELPS BUILD MORE SUSTAINABLE, PROSPERQUS, AND
INCLUSIVE COMMUNITIES IN THE MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA THROUGH EDUCATION,
GOVERNANCE, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES.

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on

the prior FOIM 990 OF 990-EZ? ||| oo [_lves [XINo
if "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? . .. .. DYes E No

if “Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c){4} organizations and section 4947{a}{1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to
others, the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a

(Ccde: ) (Expenses $ 5 9 1 I 9 3 7 + inciuding grants of $ 9 F 4 4 5 . ) (ﬂevenue $ 7 3 I 6 6 5 - )
PROGRAMS TO IMPROVE THE PRODUCTIVITY, PROFITABILITY, AND SUSTAINABILITY
OF AGRICULTURE AND NATURAL RESQURCE MANAGEMENT. TO CONTRIBUTE TO THE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OF SMALLHOLDER FARMING COMMUNITIES, NEF HELPS
FARMERS, POLICY-MAKERS AND NATURAIL RESQURCE-DEPENDENT POPULATIONS
UNDERSTAND AND ADAPT TO CLIMATE CHANGE, ADQOPT MORE EFFICTENT PRODUCTION
METHCDS, BUILD FOOD SECURITY, INCREASE INCOME, AND CONSERVE NATURAL
RESOQURCES. THESE PROGRAMS TINCILUDE:IMPROVING WATERSHED MANAGEMENT, WATER
USE EFFICIENCY, AND AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTION BENEFITING OVER 4,000
PEOPLE IN 22 MOROCCAN COMMUNITIES. ESTABLISHING 60 FARMER FIELD
SCHOOLS TO INTRODUCTION IMPROVED OLIVE PRODUCTION TECHNIQUES IN THE
PALESTINIAN TERRITORIES; INCREASE PRODUCTION BY 280%.INTRODUCING
TECHNIQUES TO IMPROVE THE SUSTAINABILITY AND PROFITABILITY QOF FOREST

4b

(Code: ) (Expenses $ 2 ‘ 029 : 438. including grants of $ 34,062, } (Revenue ¢ )
PROGRAMS TO IMPROVE CIVIC ENGAGEMENT AND PARTICIPATION. NEF WORKS WITH
YOUTH ASSOCTATIONS AND OTHER COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS TO FIND PRACTICAL
WAYS TO CONSTRUCTIVELY ADDRESS REAL PROBLEMS IN THEIR COMMUNITIES,
ISSUES LIKE UNEMPLOYMENT, ENVIRONMENTAL DEGRADATION, AND SAFETY. NEF
TRAINS YOUNG CIVIC LEADERS, HELPS COMMUNITY GROUPS TAKE COLLECTIVE
ACTION, AND SUPPORTS GOVERNMENTS IN ADDRESSING CONSTITUENT NEEDS, WITH
AN EMPHASTS ON AMPLIFYING THE VOQICE OF YOUTH IN PUBLIC DECISION-MAKING.
TRAIN 990 MOROCCAN YOUTH AND ELECTED OFFICIALS TO INCREASE YOUTH
PARTICIPATION IN L.OCAL GOVERNANCE; CREATE 10 YOUTH COUNCILS FOR
DIALOGUE BETWEEN YQUTH AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS. TRAIN 2,000
EX-COMBATANTS IN SOUTH KORDOFAN, SUDAN, IN PRINCIPLES OF CIVIL SOCIETY
AND CIVIC PARTICIPATION. SUPPORTED 4 EGYPTIAN COMMUNITY-BASED

4c

(Code: } (Expenses $ 105 ,588. including grants of § } (Revenue § )
PROGRAMS TO BUILD PEACE THROUGH ECONOMIC COCPERATION AND DEVELOPMENT.
NEF HELPS REDUCE POVERTY AND PROMOTE SUSTAINAEBLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
IN CONFLICT AND POST-CONFLICT AREAS. ACTIVITIES FOCUS ON CCRE
LIVELIHOOD ISSUES AND HELP PARTICIPANTS FIND MUTUAIL INTERESTS AND
BENEFIT THROUGH ECONCMIC COOPERATION. TRAIN 400 COMMUNITY LEADERS IN
CENTRAL DARFUR IN COLLABORATIVE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND CONFLICT
RESOLUTION. TRAIN OVER 300 PATLESTINTANS AND ISRAELIS THROUGH
CROSS-BORDER TRAININGS AWD EVENTS FOCUSED ON BUILDING COOPERATION
THROUGH MUTUAL ECONOMIC BENEFIT IN THE OLIVE OIL SECTOR. TRATIN AND
SUPPORT 1,200 SUDANESE EX-COMBATANTS IN SOUTH KORDOFAN, NORTH KORDQFAN,
AND KHARTQUM TO START SMALL BUSINESSES AND REINTEGRATE INTO THEIR

COMMUNITIES.

4d

Other program services {Describe in Schedule O.)

{Expenses $ 6 4 5 1 9 2 6 « _including grants of § 1 1 I 9 2 1 «) {Revenue$ }
4g _Total program service expenses P> 3,372,889,
Form 990 (2011)
030612 SEE SCHEDULE O FOR CONTINUATION(S) '

2



990 (2011) NEAR BEAST FQUNDATION 13-1624114 Page3

Form
Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501{c)(3} or 4947{a}{(1) (other than a private foundation)?
I 'YBS, " COMPIBTE SCHEOUIE A oo ee e s e et e e es s e e ee et ee et e e e s re e e 11 X
2 s the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of ContriButors e 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? I "Yes, " complate Schedule C, Part | 3 X
4 Section 501(c){(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h} election in effect
during the tax year? if "Yes," complete Schedule C, PArEIl ||| ...........c.ocoooooieooeee oot e sa e nsenee 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501{c}(4), 501{c)(5}, or 501(c)(6} organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes, " complete Schedule C, Part o, 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounis? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | ] b4
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If 'Yes," complete Schedule D, Part It .. 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes, " complete
SCREAUIE D, PAIT I et ee e ee et e e e e ee et ettt ee e enn 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21; serve as a custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide
credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? If "Yes," complate Schedule D, Part IV 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes, " complete SCReTUIE D, Part V
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, Vil, VIII, IX, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 107? /f *Yes, " complete Schedule D,
PaIT Wl ettt et e et e et e e e et ee e e et et 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported In Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete SChedile D, Part Vil 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part VIl e i 1ic X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Parf IX | ... e 11d X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, ling 257 If "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part X ... 1le X
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ... 11 | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independsnt audited financial staternents for the tax year? If "Yes, " complele
Schedule D, Parts X, XU @ma XIH ettt ettt ee et es e roen e 12a | X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes,” and if the organization answered "No' fo line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI, Xii, and Xili is optional . 12b X
13 s the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)ii)? If "Yes," compiete Schedufe E 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . ., 14a | X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
ormore? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 1and IV ... ... 14b | X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column {A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any organization
or entity located outside the United States? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Hland IV 15 | X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A}, line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance to individuals
located outside the United States? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part iX,
column (A}, lines 6 and 1167 [ "Yes,  complete SCRetUIe G, Part | i 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part Vi, lines
1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete SChedule G, Part Il . e 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VL, line 9a? if "Yes,"
complete SCREAUIR G, PAITII | ...ttt s et e b bbbt s e bbb s bbb b 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete Schedule H i, 20a X
b _If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization atiach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retum? ... 20b
Form 990 (2011)
182003
01-23-12



090 (2011} NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Paged

Form
Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
24 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to any government or organization in the
United States on Part IX, column (A), line 1?2 If "Yes, " complete Schedule |, Parts Tand Il e, 21 X
25 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the United States on Part IX,
column {A}, line 27 If "Yes,” complate Schedule £, Parts 1 and Ml e ——— 22 X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes, " complete
SOHEAUIS J ___.,.....oooooeeeeeoo oot st 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond igsue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedufe K IF"NO", GO IO IO 25 | ettt ettt e is sttt e 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
ANY B OO, D OM TS T e e e e et e bt e s n e 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time duringthe year? ... 24d
25a Section 501{c}(3) and 501(c}{4} organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction with a
disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete SchedUla L, Partl e e e s een 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 890 or 990-EZ7? if "Yes," complete
BOHOAUIE L, PAIET (oot 25b X
26 Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, highly compensated employee, or disqualified
person outstanding as of the end of the organization's tax year? If “Yes," complete Schedule L, Partil | . ... 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee therecf, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties {see Schedule L, Part [V
instructions for appticable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part iV ... X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes, " compiete Schedule L, Part IV 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? f “Yes," complate Schedule L, Part IV oo 28¢ X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes, " complete Schedule M 29 | X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservatlon
CONtHBUNIONS ? I "YES, " COMPIETE SORETUIE M 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations?
If *Yes," complete Schedule N, Part] e s oA X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets?If “Yes, " complete
SCHEAUIE N, PAIE I e 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If “Yes," complete Schadule R, Part I e 33 | X
24 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity?
If "Yes," comnplete Schedule R, Parts fl, I IV, and V, Re T | ... s e e 34 p:4
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)7 e 35a X
b Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity within the meaning of
section 512(b)(13)7 If "Yes, " complete Schedule R, Patt V, 8 2 e ———————— 35h X
36 Section 501(c){3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete Schedule B, Part VL Ne 2. e 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Iif "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ... 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule © and provide explanations in Schedute O for Part VI, fines 11 and 197
Note. All Form 990 filers are required tocomplete Schedule O ... oo 38 | X
Form 990 (2011)
132004
01-23-12



Form

990 (2011) NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-31624114 pageb

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V

3a

4a

5a

6a

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . .. ... 1a

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ... 1b
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming

(gambling) winnings t0 Prize WINNMBIST | ... e e et s
Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,

filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn ... ... 2a

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? .. ... ...
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?
If "Yes," has it filed a2 Form 990-T for this year? If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?
I "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: > SEE SCHEDULE QO

See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts.
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during thetax year? ...,
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax sheiter transaction? ...
If "Yes," toline 5a or b, did the organization flle FOrm BBBG-T 0
Does the organization have annuaf gross receipts that are noermally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible’? e
If “Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts

were not tax dedUCIDIBT bbbttt
Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170{c).

6a X

7
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 mada partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . 7hb
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
B0 il FOIM BB T it ittt ee oot e e eene e nte e eee e eeteeeeateaoan ee et e aaeene et e nenee e e e aanseeanne st ies
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? ...
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ...
g [f the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?
h [f the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did the supporting
organization, or a denor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring crganization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year?
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions Under SeCton AOB8 2
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?
10 Section 501(c){7) organizations. Enter:
a |Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line 12 o 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c){12) organizations. Enter:
a Grossincome from mMembers or ShareROlderS | 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received fromthem.) . 11b
12a Section 4847(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year .................. 12b
13 Section 501{c){29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? e,
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Entertheamount of reserves onhand | ... 13c ;
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No," provide an explanation in Schedule O .................oooocoo. i4b
Form 990 (2011)
132005
01-23-12



Form 990 {2011} NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624134 Page 6
Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response fo any guesHON N this Part Ml . s e s s s aes s
Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 1a
if there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority fo an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule Q.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent ... . 1b
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other

more members of the gOverning DOUYT | . . e
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to {or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing Body? et
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the vear by the following:
8 TRE GOV OOy T e ee e ee s r e s e
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing bogy? e
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization's mailing address? /f "Yes, * provide the names and addressesin Schedule Q... g X
Section B. Policies (This Section 8 requests information about policies not required by the Intemal Revenue Code.)

officer, director, trustee, or key emMplOYee? et X

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employses to a management company or otherperson? 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its govering documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
& Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or Stockholders? . .. 6 X

7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or

7a X
X

Yes | No

10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affliales? | . ... ... it
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? .
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before fiting the form?
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written contlict of interest policy? if "No," go toline 13
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts?
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes," describe
in Schedule O BOW ThiS WaS GORE ... er st eeer e
13 Did the organization have a written wWhistebloWear PONCY T
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official 15a
b Other officers or key employees of the organization ... .. oo e, 15b
If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable emity dUMNG e YOar? e e
b if "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? ... U STRT O .
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed PNY
18 Section 6104 requires an crganization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicabie), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website Another’s website Upon request
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if 50, how), the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization: P
JOHN ASHBY - 315-428-8670

432 CROUSE HINDS HALL, 900 S. CROUSE AVENUE, SYRACUSE, NY 13244

012812 Form 990 (2011)
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Form 990 (2011) NEAR EAST FOUNDATION . 13-1624114 Page7
i Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O ¢ontains a response to any question inthis Part VI e L]

Section A. _Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

® List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.

Enter -0- in columns (D), (B}, and (F} if no compensation was paid.
® List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee.”

® | jst the organization’s five current highest cormpensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key empioyee) who received reportable
compensation {Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1093-MISG) of mare than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
List persons in the following order: Individua! trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persons.

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) (©) ()] {E) {F)
Name and Title Average (o ot cfe ‘;f:'ggthan one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week ‘l’“cer and 4 directorfirustes) from from related other
(describe | £ the organizations compensation
hours for | = = organization {W-2/1099-MISC) from the
refated | 2 | & R g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations} £ | = E|E, and related
inSchedule | = | £| 5 | £ £5] = organizations
0} E|Z|E|& k5|3
(1) SHANT MARDIROSSIAN
CHATRMAN 1.001X X 0. 0. 0.
(2) HAICG MARDIKIAN
SECRETARY 1.00|X X 0. 0. 0.
(3) AMIR FARMAN-FARMA
DIRECTOR 1.00iX 0. 0. 0.
{4) JOHNWSON GARRETT
VICE CHAIRMAN 1.00|X X 0. 0. 0.
(5) TAREK YOUNES
DIRECTOR 1.00(X 0. 0. 0.
(6} LINDA JACOBS
DIRECTOR 1.00]|X 0. 0. 0.
(7) BILL SULLIVAN
DIRECTOR 1.00|X 0. 0. 0.
(8) MEHRZAD BOROUJERD
DIRECTOR 1.00(X 0. 0. 0.
(9) CHARLES BENJAMIN
PRESTDENT 40.00 X X 101,250, 0.l 17,704.
(10) MATTHEW QUIGLEY
TREASURER 1.00|X X 0. 0. 0.
(11} ALEXANDER GHISO
DIRECTOR 1.00|X 0. 0. 0.
{12) SOROUSH RICHARD SHEHABI
DIRECTOR 1.001X 0. 0. 0.
{13) ROBERT SOLOMON
DIRECTOR 1.00(X 0. 0. 0.
{14) LUCY BERKOWITZ
VICE PRESIDENT OF FINANCE 30.00 X 12,500. 0. 0.
(15) RICHARD ROBARTS
PRESIDENT EMERITUS 1.00 X 5,577. 0. 0.
{16) JOHN ASHBY
VICE PRESIDENT AND CFO 40.00 X 60,763, g. 0.
Form 980 (2011)
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Form 990 (2011}

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION

13-16

24114  Page8

:| Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued}

(A (B) <) (D} (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
(do not check more than one . R
hours per | pay, untess person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustes) from from related other
(describe | & the organizations compensation
hours for E - = organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related FEE- g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | S g |g and related
inSchedule | 21 £ | _ | & |2 5 organizations
O E| 2|55 |95
Th Sub-total s > 180,090, 0. 17'704‘
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VI, Section A . > 0. 0. 0.
d Total{addlines 1band 1¢) ... > 180,090. 0. 17,704.

2 Total number of individuals {including but not limited to those listed above} who received more than $100,000 of reportable

compensation from the organization p»

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? If "Yes," compiete Schedule J for such individual
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization

and related organizations greater than $150,0007 /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services

rendered to the organization? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such person

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from

the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or withi

n the organization’s tax year.

(A)

Name and business address

NONE

{B)

Bescription of services

(€
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not mited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization P

0

132008 D1-28-12
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Form 990 (2011) NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Page$
2 Staten:_lent of Revenue

A (8) © Revonue
Total revenue Related or Unrr%lated exciuded from
exempt function business tax under
revenue revenue sections 512,
513, or514
*2-.2 a Federated campaigns ...
g E b Membe?rs'hlp dues ... 1b
A ¢ Fundraisingevents . ..., ic
"'(5:_'_6 d Related organizations .. id
;':?"E e Government grants (contributions) ie 888,627
.‘._9?3 f Al other contributions, gifts, grants, and
2E similar amounts not included above #| 2285968
'Eg g Moncash contributions included in lines a1, § 3 1 I 0 7 8
08|  h TotalAddlinesta-tf ..o | 3174595
Business Code :
¢ | 2a PROGRAM FEES 9000%9 73,665. 73,665.
.g . b
e c
EZ
g&v d
o e
a f All other program service revenue .
1 o Total.Addlines2a2f ... | 2 73,665,
3 Investment income {including dividends, interest, and
othersimilaramountsy > 4,483. 4,483.
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
5 ROVAIES oo e ae s |
(i) Real (i} Personal
6a Grossrents ...
b Less:rental expenses ..
¢ Rental income or {loss) -
d Net rental income or {loss) ieiricrieeiessacsessciiiesecessee »
7 a Gross amount from sales of {i) Securities {ii) Other
assets other than inventory
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses .
c Gainor(loss) ...
d Net gain or 0S8} .....ovvieeieiieee et >
o | 8 a Grossincome from fundraising events {not
g including $ of
F contributions reported on line 1c). See
% Part IV, line18 a
= b Less:directexpenses ... b
© ¢ Net income or {loss) from fundraising events  ............... >
g a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part iV, line 18 ... a
b Less:directexpenses . b
¢ Net income or {loss) from gaming activites .................. | -
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances ... a
b Less:costofgoodssold .. b
¢ Net income or {loss) from sales of inventory ... | 3
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Codel::
#1a MISC. TINCOME 900099 14,005. 14,005,
b
c
d Allotherrevenue .. ...
e Total. Addfnes tlaiid . . > 14,005,
12 Total revenue. Seeinstrugtions. ... ... > 3266748, 87.670. 0. 4,483,
182005 Form 990 (2011)
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990 {2011)

NEAR EAST FOQUNDATION

13-1624314 page 10

.| Statement of Functional Expenses

complete columns (B), (C), and (D).

Section 501(c)3) and 501(c){4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete colurnn (A) but are not required to

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part IX ... iiiiiiiiiiiisiiesiesiinerisieerieiezsiasmeessizeasssssssas |:|
?g, ’g:i 'ggfi%%agg":ﬁfrf %Ffd on lines 6b, Total éﬁgenses Prog;g%?ggrgice gﬂe%lagég?:%gnzgd Fun I1;{ai)is;ing
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and .
organizations in the United States. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States. See Part IV, ine22
3 Grants and other assistance to governmentis,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 __ 55,428. 55,428,
4 Benefits paidtoorformembers ...
5 Compensaticn of current officers, directors, ‘
trustees, and key employees 197,794, 173,375. 17,524, 6,895,
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3}B) ... ..
7 Othersalariesandwages ... .. 734,966. 648,104. 61,473, 25,389.
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions gnoiude
section 401(k) and section 403(b) employer contributions) | | 1 6 z 4 0 7 * 1 3 I 5 0 0 . 2__,_2 8 0 . 6 2 7 .
9 Ctheremployeebenefits ... 154,696- 127,291. 21,501. 5,904.
10 PayrolltaXes ___.......cocoooviesiironereeeeeens 20,702, 17,033. 2,878. 791.
11 Fees for services (non-empioyees):
a Management | ... e ———————
b Legal e 6,873. 6,350. 523.
€ ACCOUNTIRG o 91,312. 56,099. 35,213.
d Lobbying . ...
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees .. ... .
g Other 491,286, 443,678, 47,608,
12  Advertising and promotion 9,468. 9,468,
13 OFiCe eXPenses ..o 20,320. 14,030. 1,912. 4,378,
14 Information technology
15 Royalties ...
16 Ocoupancy 108,057, 92,008. 12,033, 4,016.
17 TIAVEL e 131,881. 102,504. 28,546. 831.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest
21 Paymentstoaffiiates ...
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 26,321, 26,321,
23 Insurance i,
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. {|ist miscellaneous expenses in ling 24e. If line
24g amount exceeds 10% of ling 25, column (A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.) ... 5t
a TRAINING AND TECHNICAL 1,357,054, 1,357,054,
b EQUIPMENT EXPENSE 175,880. 174,163, 1,608, 109.
¢ AGRICULTURAL 20,075, 20,075,
d MISCELLANEOUS 15,630. 11,580. 3,473. 577,
e All other expenses 25,357. 24,828. 361. 168.
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 3,659,507, 3,372,889, 189,325, 97,293.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the arganization
reported in column (B} joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here > l:l if following SOP 98-2 ({ASC 958-720}
Form 990 (2011)
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990 (2011} NEAR EAST FOUNDATION

13-1624114 Pageid

Balance Sheet

Assets

Liabilities

Net Assets or Fund Balances

(A) 8)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-noninterest-bearing e, 1
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 936,574.] 2 637,463.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 160,074.] s 464,651.
108,903 214,310

Accountsreceivable, net e
Receivables from cutrent and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete Part Il
of Schedule L.
6 Receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(0{1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9} voluntary
employees’ beneficiary organizations {see instructions) . ...
7 Notes and 10ans receivable, Net
8 Inventories fOrSale OF USE |, ... .....cco.ocoiiriemiies s arse s en s sarseraeeen e s
o Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

410a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 591,403 -

b Less: acoumulated depreciation 10b 566,127, 51,094.! 10¢ 25,276.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 2,941,246, 11 2,703,005,
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 ... 12
13 Ilnvestments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 .. 13
14 Intangibleassets 14
45  Other assets. See Fart IV, line 11 64,394.[ 15 57,750,
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequalline 34) ... 4,278,911, 16 4,110,200,
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses ... 549,587.| 17 536,102,
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred reVENUE || | e e p e 177,802.] 19 457,778.

20 Tax-exempt bond Fabilities . ...
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D .
22  Payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees,
highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons. Complete Part |1
of Schedule L
23 Secured moritgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties ...
25  Other liabilities {including federal income tax, payabies to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
Schedule D
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17through 28 .. .................oooccoieniiiiiiiiiinss

727,389.] 26

Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here P £ X and complete
{ines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
27  Unrestricted NELASSEIS | .___.........cccooooiroeoesecreersenseoseerseeseeoseesesoereeereee
28 Temporarily restricted net assets
29 Permanently restricted net assets .
Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here P I:l and
complete lines 30 through 34.

174,689, 27 -219,796.
202,630.] 28 161,913,
3,174,203.] 20 3,174,203,

30 Capital stock or trust principal, orcurrent funds ... 30

81 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund ... 31

32 Retained eamnings, endowment, accumulated incore, or other funds 32

33 Totalnetassetsorfund balances . 3,5b51,522,| 83 3,116,320,

34  Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances .. 4,278,911.| 34 4,110,200,
Form 990 (2011)
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Form 990 (2011} NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 pPage12
Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question inthis Part Xb . .. e e ccineceienes X]
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VI, colmn (A, e 12} e 1 3,266,748,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), ine 25} e, 2 3,659,507,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 -392,759.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A)) 4 3,551,522,
5 Other changes in net assets or fund balances {explain in Schedule O) ... ., 5 -42,443.
6 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3, 4, and 5 {(must equal Part X, line 33, column (B}) 6 3,116,320.

1l] Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Scheduie O contains a response to any question in this Part Xl ...

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 980: D Cash Accrual |:| Cther
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? ...
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . ... .
¢ lf"Yes" toline 2a or 2b, doss the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit, :
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . .. . ...
1f the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O.
d [f "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were issued on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basts |:| Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis

3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit
Actand OMB CIroUIEr ATTIB3T e e e s ae S r e oot eon 3a| X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo suchaudits. ... b | X
Form 990 (2011)

132072
01-28-12
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OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE A . - .
Public Charity Status and Public Support 201 1

{Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Departrment of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service P Attach to Form 920 or Form 990-EZ. P See separate instructions.

Complete if the organization is a section 501{c}{3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1} nonexempt charitable trust.

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114

Reason for Public Charity Status (Al organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: {For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.}

1 [
2 [
a3 [
4 [

5

0 WO O

10
k!

[0

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b}{ T}{A)i).

A school described in section 170{b){ 1){A)ii). {Attach Schedule E.}

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b)( 1){A)iii).

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b){ 1}(A){iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmenital unit described in

section 170{b)(1)(A){iv). (Complete Part I}
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b}(1){A)v)-
An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a govemmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170{b}{1)}{A)(vi). {Complete Part Il.}
A community trust described in section 170(b){(1){A){vi). (Complete Part Il.)
An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and {2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509{a){(2), (Complete Part L)
An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509{a){4).

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to catry out the purposes of one or
maore publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a}(2). See section 508(a)(3). Check the box that
describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h.
a l:l Typel b |:| Type Il [ |:| Type Ill - Functionally integrated d l:l Type Il - Other

e D By checking this box, | certify that the organization is not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons other than
foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a){2}.

f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, or Type il
SuppOrting organization, Check this BOX e ——eere e ]

g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (ii} and (i) below, Yes [ No

the governing body of the supported organization? e ——— 11g(i}

{ii} A family member of a person described in () @bOVe? ... ... s 11gii)
{iii} A 35% controlled entity of a person described in () or (1) AbOVe? e e——— 11g(iii}

h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s}.

(i) Name of supported (1) EIN g'r'ég}ggﬁl;’; mgls t(l:)ehosrtggnlﬁayté%r: (\;)rgD;ﬂ you notiythe | s SHE o[ tvi) Amaunt of

organization (described on lines 1-9 \qquarning document?| (i) of your support? @ “rg%"_%f"é’ Inthe support

above or IRC section
{see instructions}} Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

L.HA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for

Schedule A {Form 890 or 990-EZ} 2011

Form 990 or 990-EZ.

132021
01-24-12
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2011 NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624314 page2
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170b){1){A}(iv) and 170{b}{1){A)(vi)
(Compiete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part |lI. If the organization

fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part IIl)

Section A. Public Support
Galendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) p {a) 2007 {b) 2008 {c) 2009 (d) 2010 (e} 2011 (N Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.”) 6,230 366, 4 058 708, 7,160 124, 2 770 646, 3,174 595, 23 394 439,

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalft

3 The value of services of facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Add iines 1 through3 6,230 366, 4,058 708 7,160,124 2,770,646 3,174,595 23,394 439

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person {other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
comn{®

§ Public support, Subtract line § from line 4. |

Section B. Total Support
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) p~ {a) 2007 {b) 2008 {c) 2009 {d) 2010 {e) 2011 {f) Total
7 Amounts from line 4 . 6,230, 366, 4. 058,708, 7,160,124, 2,770,646, 3,374 595,01 23 394 439,

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar sources ___ 22,648, 15,351.| 10,640. 5,770. 4,483.] 58,892,

g Net income from unrefated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part V) ...

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (8ee INSEUCHONS)

13 First five years. if the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here.  ........ooecieeiiviiieisies et iie et et v e
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 99.34 %

14 Public support percentage for 2011 (line 6, column {f) divided by line 11, column () ...,
15 Public support percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part L fine 14 15 70.23 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2011. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... ...,
b 33 1/3% support test - 2010. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 163, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organiZation
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the organization
meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization gqualifies as a pubiicly supported organization | ..., > (]
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2010, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 173, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the

1,579,207.

organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... > [}
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 174, or 17b, check this box and see instructions ... | 3 I:f

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011

132022
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Schedule A (Form 990 or S90-E7) 2011

Page 3

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509{a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part I1. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 1)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in)

{a) 2007

{b) 2008

(c}) 2009

(c} 2010

{e) 2011

{f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the

organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and &ither paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 .

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
frotn other than disqualified persens that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

cAddlines7aand7b .

Section B. Total Support

Galendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

{a) 2007

(b) 2008

{c) 2009

{d) 2010

{e} 2011

(f} Total

o Amounts fromfline6 _ .. ...

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, paymenits received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 517 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is

regularly carriedon

12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explainin Part V) oo

13 Total support (add lines ©, 10c, 11, and 12}

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,
checkthisboxand stop here ...

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15 Public support percentage for 2011 (line 8, colurmn () divided by line 13, colemn (&} ... 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2010 Schedule A Partllllne15 ... ..o 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment iIncome Percentage
17 investment income percentage for 2011 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f) ... 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2010 Schedule A, Part ), ine 17 18 %
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2011. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 Is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... .. > |:]

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2010, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

fine 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... » L]

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ._..................... » |___|

122023 01-24+12 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2011
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements

OMB No. 1545-0047

{(Form 980) P Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 1

fthe T . .
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. P See separate instructions.

Internal

Name of the organization

PartlV, line 6,7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 123, or 12b.

Revenue Service

Employer identification number

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Compiete if the
organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

[ I N | TS

=]

c o oo

(a) Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Total number atend ofyear ...
Aggregate contributions to (during year)
Aggregate grants from (duringyear)

Aggregate valueatendofyear . ..
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? ... .. e er e e e earerra L Yes D No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible private benefit? ...
Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" to Form 990, Part iV, line 7.
Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization {check all that apply).

i:l Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) (1 preservation of an historically important land area
|:| Protection of natural habitat |:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

D Preservation of open space
Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year

Total number of CONSEIVation assMENts | ... ... en e 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2h
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2¢
Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a historic structure

listed in the National Register e s 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax

year p- ‘

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located P

Doss the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? ... I:l Yes |:| No
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year p-

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year p» $

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d} above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h){@){B)()

and section T7OMANBIINT .. et ves [ _INo
In Part XIV, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the organization's agcounting for

conservation easements.
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 920, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part XIV,
the text of the footnote to its financial staternents that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance shest works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts

relating to these items:

(i} Revenues included in Form 990, Part VI, e 1 |
{iH) Assetsincluded in FormO90, Part X | e
2 i the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenues included in Form 990, Part Villl, Bne T e > s
b Assetsincluded in Form 990, Part X e > s
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2011
132081
01-23-12
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Schedule D (Form 950) 2011 NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Page2
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accesston, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items

{check all that apply):
a [ Public exhibition
b L__] Scholarly research
c |:] Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIV.

& During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
1o be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? ... .. . . [ Ives

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Gomplete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or

reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

ts the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included

on Form 990, Part X?
If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIV and compilete the following table:

d ]:| Loan or exchange programs

e f:i Qther

[:lNo

1a

I:INO

b
Amount
¢ Beginning DalBNCE | e ettt e
d Additions QUANG TN@ YOI ettt et id
e Distributions during the Year . ..o reeen 1e
£ OENAING DAMANCE || ettt 1t
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, N0 212 D Yes E No
b [f "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIV.
Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answerad "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, fine 10.
{a) Current year {b) Prior vear {c) Two years back | {d) Three years back | (e} Four years back
1a Beginning of yearbalance .. ... 3,376,834, 3,168,678, 272 971, 172 971.)
b Contributions ... 3,000,000, 100,000
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 10,019, 11 281, 6,739,
d Grants orscholarships ... .. ... ..
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs ... 50,376, 260,621, 111,032,
f Administrative expenses .
g Endofyearbalance ... ... 3,336,477, 2,919 338, 3,168,678, 272 971
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment > 4.86 %
b Permanent endowment 85.14 %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment .00 %
The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization
by: Yes | No
(i) unrefated OFQANIZAtIONS | e et e 18af| X
(i} related OFGaNIZALONS | | | ettt ettt e e e ettt ot er et eneas |3alii) X
b If "Yes" to 3a(i}, are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? .. o 3b
4 Pescribe in Part X}V the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other {b} Cost or other (c) Accumulated {d) Book value
hasis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
Ta Land e
b Builldings ...,
¢ l.easehold improvements
d EQUIPMENt ...\ 583,697, 558,422. 25,275.
e Other . ..o, 7,706. 7.705, 1.
Total. Add fines 1a through 1e. {Column {d} must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), fine 10(c).) . ... [ 25,276,

132052

01-23-12
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2011 NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Page3
VIl| Investments - Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category
{including name of security)

(c) Method of valuation:

B
(b) Book vatue Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial devivatives ... ...

(2) Closely-held equity interests ... ...

(3) Other
A
B)
)]
D)
(E}
(F)
(E)
{H)
0]

Col {b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B} line 12.) B> :
] Investments - Program Related. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

Description of investment t (c) Method of valuation:
@ P [ ment type (b) Book value Cost or end-of-year market value

ual Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13.) >
Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
{a) Description {b) Book vaiue

(1}
]
(3)
4
&)
{6}
7
(8
(9)
{10)
Total. (Cotumn (b} must equal Form 990, Pant X, col (B)ine 18] ...coooeviericeiciinioininipiiiiiieiie | 2
(| Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25. '
1. (a} Description of liability {b) Book value

{1) Federal income taxes

@
(3)
()]
{5}
6
N
)]
©
(10}
(1)

Total. (Column (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B line 25.) ............. |

48 (ASC 740y Footnote, Tn Part XIV, provids the text nf the footnote to the orpanization's financial stalements that reports the organization's liahility for unceriain ax positions under

— FIN
2. FIN 48 (ASC 740).
132053 Schedule D (Form 990) 2014
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(Form 990} 2011 NEAR EAST FQUNDATION 13-1624114 page4
1 Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets from Form 990 to Audited Financial Statements

1 Total revenue (Form 990, Part VIIl, column (A), ine 12) 1 3,266,748,

2  Total expenses (Form 990, Part IX, column (A}, line 25) 2 3,659,507,

3 Excess or (deficit) for the year. Subtract line 2 fromline 1 3 -392,758,

4 Netunrealized gains {l08se8) O INVeStMeNtS e, 4 2,019.

5§ Donated services and use of TaCilities e 5

6 InvesIMent eXPeNSES || e 6

7 Priorperiod @dUSHMBNES ettt een 7

8 Other(Describe in Part XIV) e 8 -44,462.

9 Total adjustments (net). Add lines 4through 8 e, 9 -42,443.
10 -435,202,

| | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
1 Total revenue, gains, and cther support per audited financial statements
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 80, Part VI, line 12:

a Netunrealized gains oninvestments ...

b Donated services and use of facilties

¢ Recoveriesof prioryeargrants
d
e

3,332,817.

Other (Describe in Part XIV. e

Add lines 2a troUgN 2 ettt et ' 66,069.
3,266,748,

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIIl, ine 7b ...
b Other(Describein Part XIV.) e
G ADDENES 4aanddb ettt 4c 0.

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 890, Parti line 12.) ... ... 5 3,266,748,

Xilli Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements oo 3,768,019.

Amounts included on line T but not on Form 290, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities |

b Prioryearadjustments e,

€ OtherlossSes | e

d

e

Other (Describe in Part XIV.) e ver e L 2
Addiines 2a tIOUGN 20 e e 64,050,
3 SUBtrACt INe 2o frOM e 1 e 3,703,9689.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part 1X, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b
b Other (Describe inPart XIV.} e
© ADAIENES 4B AN 4D ... oiiiiieo oo oo -44,462.
Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4e. (This must equal Form 990, Part I_line 18.) 3,659,507,
IV] Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part I, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part IIi, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part
X, line 2; Part X, line 8; Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.
PART X, LINE 2: THE FOUNDATION IS EXEMPT FROM INCOME TAXES AS AN

ORGANIZATION QUALIFIED UNDER SECTION 501(C)(3) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE

CODE., THE FOUNDATION HAS ALSO BEEN CLASSTFIED BY THE INTERNAL REVENUE

SERVICE AS AN ENTITY WHICH IS NOT A PRIVATE FOUNDATION.

FOR TAX-EXEMPT ENTITIES, THEIR TAX-EXEMPT STATUS ITSELF IS DEEMED TQO BE AN

UNCERTAINTY, SINCE EVENTS COULD POTENTIALLY OCCUR TO JEQPARDIZE THEIR

TAX-EXEMPT STATUS. AS OF JUNE 30, 2012, THE FOUNDATION DOES NOT HAVE A

LIABILITY FOR UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS. THE FOUNDATION FILES TINCOME TAX
Schedule D (Form 990} 2011
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e D (Form 990) 2011 NEAR FAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Pages
Supplemental Information gontinved)

RETURNS IN THE U.S. FEDERAL JURISDICTION AND NEW YORK STATE. THE

FOUNDATION IS GENERALLY NO LONGER SUBJECT TO U.S. FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME

TAX EXAMINATIONS BY TAX AUTHORITIES FOR YEARS BEFORE 2009.

PART XI, LINE 8 - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

FORIEGN EXCHANGE ADJUSTMENT -44,462.

PART XITII, LINE 4B - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE -44,462.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2011

132055
01-23-12
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SCHEDULEF
(Form 990}

Departrent of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Statement of Activities Outside the United States |

P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,

P Attach to Form 990. P See separate instructions.

Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.

OMB No. 1545-0047

Name of the organization

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION

2011

S k)
Employer identification number

13-1624114

to Form 990, Part IV, line 14%.

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complste if the organization answered "Yes"

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other assistance,

the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the grants or assistance?

United States.

3 Activities per Region. {The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)

D Yes

No

For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other assistance outside the

{a) Region {b} Number of | (¢) Number of | {d) Activities conducted in region (e) If activity listed in (d) (f} Total
offices g&%‘t‘,’syea%% {by type) (e.g., fundraising, program is a program service, ex;;enditures
in the region | independent sen_ric_:es. investmepts, grant-s to describ_e spef:Iﬂc type invgét?'r?gnts
c?r?rreﬁ:)?\r S recipients located in the region) of service(s) in region in region

SUPPORTED 4 EGYPTIAN
COMMUNITY-BASED
DRGANIZATIONS TO TRAIN

EGYPT 1 5 [PROGRAM SERVICE HUNDREDS OF YOUTH CIVIC 517,224,
PROVIDED VOCATIONAL
TRAINING, LITERACY,
BGRICULTURE, AND RURAL

JORDAN 1 5 [PROGRAM SERVICE DEVELOPMENT SUPPPORT, 52 309,
IHNTRODUCING TECHNIQUES
TO IMPROVE THE
SUSTAINABILITY AND

MALT 1 21 PROGRAM SERVICE PROFITABILITY OF FOREST 297 508,
INCREASED YOUTH CIVIC
ENGAGEMENT ; PROVIDED
TMPROVED AGRICULTURAL

MORQCCO 2 16 [PROGRAM SERVICE WATER MANAGEMENT, 492 755,
PTRAIN AND SUPPORT 1,200
SUDANESE EX-COMBATANTS
IN SOUTH RORDOFAN, NORTH

SUDAN 3 32 [PROGRAM SERVICE EORDOFAN , AND KHARTOUM 1,326 809,
SUPPORT RURAL ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT IN AN EFFORT
0 REDUCE POVERTY WITHIN

ARMENTA 1 1 [PROGRAM SERVICE THE REGION, 3,840,
TRAIN OVER 300
PALESTINIANS AND
ITSRAELIS THROUGH

WEST BANK/GAZA 1 & PROGRAM SERVICE [CROSS-BORDER TRAININGS 161,105,

3a Subtotal ... 19 550

b Total from continuation
sheetsto Part! . g L
¢ Totals (add lines 3a
and3b} ... 10 2 851 550
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 290. Schedule F (Form 990) 2011

132071
01-22-12

SEE PART V FOR COLUMN (E) DESCRIPTIONS
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Schedule F (Form 920) 2011 NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Pagea
Foreign Forms

1 Was the organization a U.S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes," the
organization may be required to file Form 926, Retumn by a U.S. Transferor of Properiy to a Foreign
Corporation (see Instructions for Form 926) . [ ves No

2 Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? if "Yes," the organization
may be required to file Form 3520, Annual Return fo Report Transactions with Foreign Trusts and
Receipt of Certain Foreign Gifts, and/or Forrm 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foreign Trust With
a U.S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A) L Ives [XIno

3 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes,"
the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To
Certain Foreign Gorporations. (see INSUCtions for FOMM S471) .. ......oooooeoeeeevoresoesoeesoeeooeeoee Cves [XIno

4 Was the organization a direct or indirect sharsholder of a passive foreign investment company or a
qualified electing fund during the tax year? If “Yes," the organization may be required to file Form 8621,
Information Return by a Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing Fund.

(see InStructions or FOIM BB2T) e e e [ Tves No
5 Did the crganization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? If "Yes,"
the organization may be required to fife Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To Certain
Foreign Partnerships. (s6e INStrUCHONS 08 FOMN BEB5) ___..._.._.....c.......ooreoceresrroersererseresessereoresseceosressereeeseeees [ Jves [XIno
6 Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? /f
"Yes, " the organization may be required to file Form 5713, Intemational Boycott Report (see Instructions
g XTSI [ ves No
Schedule F (Form 990) 2011

132074
01-23-12
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Schedule F (Form 990) 2011 NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Pages
‘Part V.|| Supplemental Information |
Complete this part to provide the information required by Part 1, ine 2 {monitoring of funds); Part |, line 3, column {f} {accounting method;
arnounts of investments vs. expenditures per region); Part ii, line 1 (accounting methody); Part Il {accounting method); and Part I, column

(c) festimated number of recipients), as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART I, LINE 3, COLUMN (E):

REGION: EGYPT

(E) SPECIFIC TYPES OF SERVICES IN REGION: SUPPORTED 4 EGYPTIAN

COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS TO TRAIN HUNDREDS OF YQUTH CIVIC LEADERS IN

DEMOCRATIC PRINCIPLES, PROBLEM SOLVING, AND ORGANIZING STRATEGIES.

REGION: MALT
(E) SPECIFIC TYPES OF SERVICES IN REGION: INTRODUCING TECHNIQUES TO

IMPROVE THE SUSTAINABILITY AND PROFITABILITY OF FOREST MANAGEMENT,

LIVESTOCK, FISHING, AND AGRICULTURE IN 50 MALTAN COMMUNITIES

REGION: SUDAN

(E) SPECIFIC TYPES OF SERVICES IN REGION: TRAIN AND SUPPORT 1,200

SUDANESE EX-COMBATANTS IN SOUTH KORDOFAN, NORTH KORDOFAN, AND KHARTOUM TO

START SMALL BUSINESSES AND REINTEGRATE INTO THEIR COMMUNITIES.

REGION: WEST BANK/GAZA

(E) SPECIFIC TYPES OF SERVICES TN REGION: TRAIN OVER 300 PALESTINIANS

AND ISRAELIS THROUGH CROSS-BORDER TRAININGS AND EVENTS FOCUSED ON

BUILDING CCOPERATION THROUGH MUTUAL ECONOMIC BENEFIT IN THE OLIVE OIL

SECTOR .

132075 01-23-12 Schedule F {Form ©90) 2011
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SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions OMS No. 15450047

(Form 990} 20 1 1

P Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form
Department of the Treasury 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.

internal Revenue Service > Attach to Form 990

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114
Types of Property
(@ (b) (c) {d)
Check if Number of Noncash contribution Method of determining
applicable | contributions or | amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts

litems contributed| Form 990, Part VI, line 1g

Art - Fractional interests | . . ... ..
Books and publications ...
Clothing and household goods .. ..
Cars and othervehicles ...~
Boats and planes |
Intellectual property
Securities - Publicly traded ...
Securities - Closely hefd stock ...
Securities - Partnership, LLC, or
trustinterests ..
12 Securities - Miscellaneous ...
13 Qualified conservation contribution -

Historic structures ... ...
14 Qualified conservation contribution - Cther
15 Real estate - Residential
16 Real estate - Commercial ... ..
17 Realestate-Other . . i,
18 Gollectibles ...

O 0 ~NDO L WK -

- -
- O

19 Foodinventory .. ...
20 Drugs and medicalsupplies . .
21 Taxidermy ...,
22 Historicalartifacts ...
23 Scientific specimens .
24 Archeological artifacts ...
25 Other » ( IN-KIND PROFE) X 1 54,915. FATR MARKET VALUE
26 Other P ( IN-KIND RENT ) X 1 $,135. FATR MARKET VALUE
27 Other P ( )
28 Other P ¢ )
20 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part [V, Donee Acknowledgement | | 29

30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1-28 that it must hold for
at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which is not required to be used for exempt purposes for

the entire NOIING PEROUT e ee e ee e eee e enen
b If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part il )
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any non-standard contributions?

32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash

COMITIOULIONS? ittt

b If "Yes," describe in Part |1
33  If the organization did not report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (2} is checked,

describe in Part 4,
LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, Schedule M (Form 930) (2011)

132141
01-23-12
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[ OMB No. 1545-0047

2011

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

{Form 990 or 930-EZ}) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Department of the Treasury Form 990 or 990-EZ ¢r to provide any additional information. anto:Riblic
Internal Revenus Service P> Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Employer identification number

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114

Name of the organization

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA THROUGH EDUCATION, GOVERNANCE, AND ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES.

FORM 950, PART III, LINE 4A, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

MANAGEMENT, LIVESTOCK, FISHING, AND AGRICULTURE IN 50 MALIAN

COMMUNITIES

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4B, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:
ORGANIZATIONS TO TRATIN HUNDREDS OF YOUTH CIVIC LEADERS IN DEMOCRATIC

PRINCTPI.ES, PROBLEM SOLVING, AND ORGANTIZING STRATEGIES.

FORM 990, PART V, LINE 4B, LIST OF FOREIGN COUNTRIES:

MALY, MOROCCO, JORDAN, EGYPT,

SUDAN, OTHER COUNTRY

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11: ONCE NEF MANAGEMENT HAS COMPLETED
THE FORM 990 IN DRAFT, IN CONSULTATION WITH THE ORGANIZATION'S TAX

PREPARERS, NEF MANAGEMENT WILL PROVIDE THE DRAFT FORM TQO THE NEF AUDIT

COMMITTEE AHEAD OF A MEETING OF THIS COMMITTEE. THE COMMITTEE WILL REVIEW

THE DRAFT FORM AND PROVIDE ITS APPROVAL, SUBJECT TQO APPROPRIATE REVISIONS.

- UPON SUCH APPROVAL, NEF MANAGEMENT WILL PROVIDE THE APPROVED FROM 990 TO

THE FULL NEF BOARD AND SUBMIT THE APPROVED FORM TO THE IRS ACCORDANCE WITH

THE REQUIRED DUE DATES FOR SUBMISSION.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C: DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND KEY

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 890 or 890-EZ) (2011)

132211
03-23-12
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E7) (2011) Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-162411314

EMPLOYEES ARE REQUIRED TO COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE EACH YEAR, DISCLOSING ANY

CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS. A RESPONSE IS REQUIRED AND ANY POTENTIAL CONFLICTS

ARE INVESTIGATED AND BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT,

AND IF APPROPRIATE, LEGAL, COUNSEL.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15: THE PROCESS TQO SET EXECUTIVE

COMPENSATION (PRESIDENT, OFFICERS, & OTHER KEY EMPLOYEES) CONSISTS OF A

REVIEW CONDUCTED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD AND REPORTED

TQO THE EXECUTIVE OF THE BOARD. LEGAL COUNSEL IS CONSULTED REGARDING TERMS

AND CONDITIONS. RECRUITING AGENTS MAY ALSO BE CONSULTED TO DETERMINE

APPOPRIATE SALARIES. COMPARABILITY MEASURES INCLUDE 990'S FOR COMPARABLE

ORGANIZATIONS, RECRUITERS, AND ALSQO SURVEYS ON NOT-FOR-PROFIT PAY PUBLISHED
BY INSIDENGO.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19: THE ORGANIZATION MAKES ITS

GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY, AND FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS

AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 5, CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:

NET UNREALIZED GAINS ON INVESTMENTS : 2,019.
FORIEGN EXCHANGE ADJUSTMENT -44,462.
TOTAL TO FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 5 -42,443.

PART XII, LINE 2C

THE QVERSIGHT OF THE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF

THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.

A Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2) (2011)
28
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Schedule R {Form 990) 2011 NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 13-1624114 Pages

Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see instructions).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

March 27, 2013

To the Board of Directors of
Near East Foundation and Subsidiary:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position
of Near East Foundaticn and Subsidiary (the "Foundation") as of June 30, 2012,
and the related consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Near East Foundation and
Subsidiary as of June 30, 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
reports dated March 27, 2013 on our consideration of the Foundation's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{Continued)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circufar A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Crganizations, and is not a required part
of the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the accompanying schedule of direct program
services by location for the year ended June 30, 2012 is presented for purpose of additional analysis
and is also not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was detived from and relates directly fo the underlying accounting and
other records used fo prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consoclidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

EMKJA'J f Cn./ LLF



NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalents
Accounts and loans receivable
Grants and contracts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Investments, at fair value

Security deposits

Investment in trusts held by others
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES:

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements,

N
e
N

$ 637,463
214,310
464,651

7,745
2,703,005
8,000
48,750
25,276

$ 4110200

$ 82,222
453,880
457,778

993,880

(219,796)
161,913
3,174,203

3,116,320

$ 4,110,200



NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPCRT:
Contributions
Government grants and contracts
Private grants
In-kind contributions
Investment income
Program related income
Other income
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and other support
EXPENSES:
Direct program services
Program administration

Total program services

Management and general
Fund-raising

Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - as previously reported
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

NET ASSETS - beginning of year - as restated

NET ASSETS - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

2012
Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 261529 % 8,000 $ 269,529
888,627 - 888,627
1,985,361 - 1,985,361
95,128 - 95,128
4,483 2,019 6,502
73,665 - 73,655
14,005 - 14,005
50,736 (50,736) -
3,373,534 {40,717) 3,332,807
2,851,649 - 2,851,549
573,753 - 573,753
3,425,302 3,425,302
245,424 - 245,424
97,293 - 97,293
3,768,019 - 3,768,019
{394,485) (40,717) (435,202)
174,689 859,193 4,208,085
- (656,563) (656,563)
174,689 202,630 3,651,522
$ (219,796) § 161,913 $ 3,174,203 $ 3,116,320
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NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
from operating activities:
Depreciation
Bad debt
Change in fair value of investments
Change in value of investments in trusts held by others
Changes in:
Accounts and loans receivable
Grants and contracts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of fixed assets
Proceeds on sales of investments
Purchase of investments

Net cash flow fromn investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from line of credit

Net cash flow from financing activities
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

6
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(435,203)

26,321
700

(142)
6,644

(108,107)

(304,576)
8,881

(95,707)

279,976

(619,213)

(503)
2,437,985

{2,199,602)

237,880

82,222

82,222

(299,111)

936,574

$

637,463



NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

Near East Foundation ("NEF" or the "Foundation") is an international non-governmental
organization, founded in 1915, that fosters and supports civil society organizations in select
African and Middle Eastern communities experiencing inveterate poverty, as well as conflict,
migration and/or climate change. NEF designs and manages projects that engage
communities in simple but innovative and sustainable practices and technologies to meet their
basic needs in agriculture, education, healthcare and income generation, giving them the
confidence and competence to seek services from their governments and broader societies.

To implement its projects, the organization maintains offices and staff in Egypt, Jordan, Mali,
Merocco, Palestine and Sudan, as well as New York. lis presence in these countries is
registered with each of the respective national authorities, and NEF also has a license from the
U.S. Treasury Department to work in Sudan. With respect to Egypt, NEF has a memorandum
of understanding with the Center for Development Services ("CDS"} {o provide NEF with staff
for representation purposes, as well as other memoranda of understanding to provide staff and
services for specific NEF projects in Egypt. CDS is an Egyptian company that belongs to
former NEF employees who set up CDS with support from NEF. NEF has supported other
former and current employees to set up similar entities in other countries, but has not used

these entities.

NEF has been classified as a 501(c)(3) organization and is exempt from federal income taxes
under the provisions of 501(a) of the internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of the
State of New York tax laws. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

NEFdev, a for-profit subsidiary of NEF, was established in March 2006 to take advantage of
United States government small business grants that would not be available fo the not-for-
profit NEF organization. NEFdev has been inactive as of June 30, 2008, but is expected to
pursue small business grants in the future.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of Near East Foundation and its Subsidiary
(collectively the “Foundation”). In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
all significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

7



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Statement Presentation
The Foundation reports its activities based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed

restrictions utilizing the following net asset categories:

Unrestricted
Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are, therefore, available

for the general operations of the Foundation.

Temporarily Restricted

Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will be met either by actions
of the Foundation andfor the passage of time. As such restrictions are satisfied,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in
the accompanying statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions,

Permanently Restricted

Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations requiring the cerpus of the gift
be retained in perpetuity. Generally, such donors allow the income from these resources
to be used for general or specific purposes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments with original maturities at the time
of purchase of three months or less, excluding cash held for investment purposes. The
Foundation maintains cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally-
insured limits. The Foundation has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes
it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts and Loans Receivables

Accounts receivable are stated at outstanding balances. The Foundation considers accounts
receivable to be fully collectible based on management's review of individual accounts
outstanding. If collection becomes doubtful, an allowance for doubtful accounts wilf be
established, or the accounts will be charged to income when that determination is made by
management. Unpaid balances remaining after the stated payment terms are considered past
due. Recoveries of previously charged off accounts are recorded when received.

Loans receivable consist primarily of amounts loaned fo individuals and businesses to support
agricultural production and food security. Loans are stated at unpaid principal balances plus
interest, less the allowance for loan losses. Loans are due in July 2012,

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for [oan losses is maintained at a level which, in management’s judgment, is
adequate to absorb credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The amount of the allowance is
based on past collection experience and an analysis of outstanding amounts. The allowance
is increased by a provision for loan losses, which is charged to expense, and reduced by
charge-offs, net of recoveries. Changes in the allowance relating to impaired loans are
charged to the provision for loan losses. Management did not consider an allowance for loan
losses necessary as of June 30, 2012.

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that
are particularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market
conditions. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans,
further reductions in the carrying amounts of loans may be necessary because of uncertainties
associated with local economic conditicns and future cash flows on impaired loans.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Grants and Contracts Receivable

Grants and contracts receivable represent revenue earned but not received from the grantors.
The Foundation considers all grants and contracts receivable to be fully collectible based on
management's review of contributions outstanding. If collection becomes doubtful, an
allowance for doubtful accounts will be established, or the accounts wilt be charged to income
when that determination is made by management. Unpaid balances remaining after the stated
payment terms are considered past due. Recoveries of previously charged off accounts are
recorded when received,

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Gains and losses on investmenis of temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets are fo be classified according to explicit donor-imposed
stipulations. Absent donor-imposed stipulations, applicable state law is to be followed.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit
risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least
reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near
term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Realized gains or losses result from the sale of investments
and are allocated to the applicable funds. Unrealized gains or losses result from market value
fluctuations and are also allocated to the applicable funds. Both are recorded in the statement
of activities and changes in net assets in investment income.

investment in Trusts Held By Others

The Foundation is a beneficiary of two trusts. The Foundation’s beneficial interest is measured
at the discounted value of its expected future cash flows and is reporied as temporarily
restricted net assets. At the end of the trusts, the remaining assets will become available for

the Foundation's use.

In addition, a donor established a funded trust under which specified distributions are to be
made 1o a designated beneficiary over the trust's term. Upon the death of the beneficiary, the
Foundation will receive a porticn of the assets remaining in trust. Charitable remainder trusts
are recorded as increases in temporarily restricted net assets at the fair value of the trust
assets, less the present value of the estimated future payments to be made to the beneficiary.

Property and Equipment

Fixed assets are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation or at cost if purchased.
The Foundation capitalizes fixed assets in excess of $500 with a useful life greater than one
year. Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets which range from 5 to 10 years.

Endowment Funds
Endowment funds represent funds that are not available for current use because they have
been so restricted by donors, or designated by the Foundation's board of directors.

interpretation of Relevant Law

The Foundation's Board of Directors has interpreted the applicable provisions of New York
Not-for-Profit Corporation Law to mean that the classification of appreciation on endowment
gifts, beyond the original gift amount, follows the donor's restrictions on the use of the related
income. The Foundation also observes the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act
protection of the historic gift value of individual endowment funds.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Donated Services, Supplies and Facilities

Donated services are recoghized as contributions if the services (a)create or enhance
nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills,
and would otherwise be purchased by the Foundation. The Foundation received donated
services valued at $54,915 for the year ended June 30, 2012. The value of the donated
services was included as in-kind contributions in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding program expenses for the year ended June 30, 2012.

The Foundation received donated facilities that are reflected as contributions at their
respective estimated fair rental values with a commensurate charge to expense. For the year
ended June 30, 2012, donated space amounted to $9,135.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statements of activities and functional expenses. The costs are functionalized on a direct
basis, where possible. Indirect costs are allocated on the basis of time spent.

Foreign Exchanges Gain or Loss

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using rates
prevailing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated at rates prevailing on the date
of the respective transaction. Foreign exchange gains or losses are included in the
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets as components of program
and/or management and general expenses, as appropriate.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is exempt from income taxes as an organization qualified under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation has also been classified by the
internal Revenue Service as an entity which is not a private foundation.

For tax-exempt entities, their tax-exempt status itself is deemed to be an uncertainty, since
events could potentially occur to jeopardize their tax-exempt status. As of June 30, 2012, the
Foundation does not have a liabifity for unrecognized tax benefits. The Foundation files
income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and New York State. The Foundation is
generally no longer subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2009.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides
a framework for measuring fair value under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and applies fo all financial instruments that are being measured and reported on a
fair value basis. (ASC) 820 sets out a fair value hierarchy and defines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy is defined as follows:

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Foundation has the ability to access. Valuation adjustments are not applied
to Level 1 instruments. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily
and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not
entail a significant degree of judgment.

10



FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Level 2: Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active market,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are nof active,
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, and market corroborated inputs
which are derived principally from or corrcborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement.

The asset's or Ifability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of chservable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for investments measured at
fair value.

Level 1 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of the bank savings account and money market funds are based on an open
market. The fair values of U.S. government securities and investment in trusts held by others
are valued at the closing price reported on an active market on which the individual securities
are traded.

The Foundation assesses the levels of the investments at each measurement date, and
transfers between levels are recognized on the actual date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer in accordance with its accounting policy regarding the
recognition of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy. There were no significant
transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hlerarchy the Foundation’s
investments at fair value.

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market funds $ 33685 $ - 3 -3 33,685
Bank savings account 468,782 - - 469,782
Investment in {rusts held by
others 49,750 - - 49,750
U.8. Government securities 2,199,538 - - 2,199,638
$ 2752755 % - 8 -$ 2752755

11



INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of the following at June 30:

201
Cost Fair Value
Money market funds $ 33,685 % 33,685
Bank savings account 469,782 469,782
U.S. Government securities 2,199,602 2,199,538

2,703,069 2.703.005

Investment income consists of the following at June 30:

2012
Interest and dividend income $ 1,354
Unrealized gains on investments 5,148
6,502

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

At June 30, 2012, property and equipment, net, consist of the following:

2012
Vehicles $ 463,297
Office equipment 120,399
Furniture and fixtures 7.705
591,401
Less: accumulated depreciation (566.125)
$ 25276

LINE OF CREDIT
In 2012, the Foundation obtained a $100,000 line-of-credit agreement with a bank. Interest on

the line-of-credit is at prime plus .75% (4% as of June 30, 2012) and it is secured by all assets
of the Foundation. As of June 30, 2012, $82,222 was borrowed against the line.

12



OPERATING LEASES

The Foundation has several operating leases that are renewable on an annual basis or office
space which expire at various dates through July 2013. Future minimum lease payments
under the operating leases over one year as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:

2013 $ 46,736
2014 12,622
58,358

Rental expense under operating leases was $86,389 for the year ended June 30, 2012.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted by purpose or periods for the following
locations:

2012
NEF — Mali $ 97,345
NEF — NY and Morocco 64,249
$§ 162274
The following represents assets released from restrictions for the following location:
2012
NEF ~ NY and Morocco {560,376)
5 {50,376)

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Permanently restricted net assets as of June 30 consist of investments to be held in perpetuity
in funds and charitable trusts as noted below for the purpose of generating income for the
general purpose of the Foundation:

2012
Francis K. Ross Charitable Trust $ 62,414
Violet J. Jacobs Endowment Fund 3,000,000
Other 111,789
3 3,174,203

The Foundation is subject o the New York Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Foundation has
determined that when a contribution is received and the donor restricts the Foundation from
spending the principal. New York Law requires the Foundation to treat of the contribution
received as an endowment Such amount is recorded as permanently restricted and
investment return is recorded as temporarily restricted until appropriated for spending.

13



PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (Continued)

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that
attempt to maintain a surplus for the Foundation to allow for possible distributions for operating
expenses for unusual or unexpected repairs and improvements to its physical plants.
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Foundation must
hold in perpetuity. Under this policy, as approved by the board of directors, the overriding
objective is {o maintain purchasing power.

On March 5, 2010, a donor sighed an agreement with the Foundation to provide cash totaling
$3,000,000 to establish an endowment in perpefuity, the income from which will be used to
support the operations of the Foundation. The terms of the agreement require the Foundation
to actively pursue building its board, and to establish a spending rate of 7% measured on
June 30 of each year if the value of the endowment is greater than its corpus and 5% if it falls

below the corpus.
Endowment net assets are classified as follows for the years ended June 30, 2012:

Temporarily Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total
Balance, July 1, 2011 $ 202631 §$ 3174203 $ 3,376,834
investment returns:

Investment income 2,019 - 2,019
Contributions 8,000 - 8,000
Appropriated for expenditures (226) - (226)
Approved transfer {50,150) - (50,150)
Change in endowment net

assets {40.357) - (40,357}
Balance, June 30, 2012 $ 162274 $ 3174203 $ 3.336477

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted funds
may fall below the level that the donor or relevant law requires the Foundation fo retain as a
fund of perpetual donation. Deficiencies of this nature would be reported in temporarily
restricted net assets to the extent accumulated gains are available to absorb such loss.
Otherwise, such deficiencies are reported in unrestricted net assets. Deficiencies of this nature
that are reported in unrestricted net assets were $633,472 at June 30, 2012. This deficiency
resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred after the investment of new
confributions and continued appropriation for purposes specified by the donor or activities that
were deemed prudent by the Foundation. Subseqguent gains that restore the fair value of the
assets of the endowment fund to the required fevel will be classified as increases in

unrestricted net assets.

14



10.

1.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The 2012 consolidated financial statements have been restated to correct an error in reporting.
Management determined that accounts receivable and temporarily restricted revenue was
overstated by $656,563 as of June 30, 2011, due to the recording of contribution receivable
and revenue prior to amounts being earned. Accordingly, an adjustment was made to the
statement of activities and changes in net assets to decrease net assets — beginning of year by
$656,563.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 27, 2013 the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.

15



NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

SCHEDULE OF DIRECT PROGRAM SERVICES BY LLOCATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012

2012

Egypt 3 517,224
Jordan 52,309
Mali 297,508
Morocco 492 755
Sudan 1,326,809
Armenia ' 3,840
West Bank/Gaza 161,105

$ 2,851,550

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Federal Grantor/Program Title

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT DIRECT PROGRAMS:
Olive Oil Without Borders: Palestinian-
Israeli Olive Oil Project

Agricuitural Water Management Project -
Morocco :

Enhancing Resilience to Climate
Change - Mali

PASSED THROUGH RTI INTERNATIONAL:

Local Governance Program 2 - Morocco

Total U.S. Agency for International
Development Direct Programs

CFDA Number

98.001

98.001

96.001

98.001

Award Number

AlD-294-A-11-00010

608-A-00-11-00004

688-A-00-09-00088-00

EPP-I-00-04-00037-00

See note to shecedule of expenditures of Fedeal Awards.
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132,322

237,970

147,749

291,852

809,883



NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2012

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

March 27, 2013

To the Board of Directors of
Near East Foundation and Subsidiary:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Near East Foundation
and Subsidiary (the "Foundation") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
and have issued our report thereon dated March 27, 2013. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Foundation is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in infernal controf exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in intemnal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined previously.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

{Continued)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compiiance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
Board of Directors, others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BUV[EJA'J f (A./ LY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT
ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

March 27, 2013

To the Board of Directors of
Near East Foundation and Subsidiary:

Compliance

We have audited Near East Foundation and Subsidiary (the "Foundation”)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Foundation's major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2012. The Foundation's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's resuits section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the Foundation's management. QOur responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Foundation's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicabie to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OME Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Foundation's compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination on the Foundation's
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

{Continued)

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Foundation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Foundation's internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal controi over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above,

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance with the types
of compliance requirements applicable to each of the Foundation's major programs and our testing
of intemal control over compliance and the results of our testing, and to provide an opinion on the
Foundation’s compliance but not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control over compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's compliance with requirements
applicable to each major program and its internal control over compliance. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

BMRJA'J f Ca./ LLF
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NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITCOR’S RESULTS

Consolidated Financial Statements

Type of Independent Auditors' report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? yes N no
Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes v none reported
Noncompliance material to consolidated financial
statements noted? yes ¥ no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? yes v no
Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes v none reported

Type of Independent Auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of
Circular A-1337 yes v no

tdentification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program

U.S. Agency for International Development:
98.001 Foreign Assistance for Programs Overseas

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B programs: $300.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? N yes no
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NEAR EAST FOUNDATION AND SUBSIDIARY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION Il - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
Current-Year Findings

None reported
Prior-Year Findings

None reported

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported
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